
Memorandum to the City of Markham Committee of Adjustment
August 19, 2021

File:   A/098/21
Address:  7200 Victoria Park Avenue
Applicant:  Weins Canada Inc. (Ken Yokoyama)
Agent: Macaulay Shiomi Howson (Nick Pileggi)
Hearing Date: Wednesday, August 25, 2021

The following comments are provided on behalf of the Central Team:

The applicant is requesting relief from the following requirements of the “Business 
Park*578 (BP*578) Zone” of By-law 177-96, as amended:

a) Amending By-law 2017-62, Section 7.578.2(l):   

to permit Business Office uses to occupy a minimum of 55.5% of gross floor area 

of all buildings on site, whereas the By-law requires a minimum of 60.0%;    

as it relates to a proposed office building with accessory automobile sales 

establishment and associated service and repair uses.

BACKGROUND
Property Description
The 1.16 ha (2.87 ac) subject property is located on the northwest corner of Victoria 
Park Avenue and Torbay Road (see Appendix “A” – Aerial Photo). The property is 
located within an established business park comprised of a mix of one and two-storey 
industrial and office buildings. 

There is an existing five-storey open air parking structure on the property, which 
according to building permit records, was constructed in 2020. 

Proposal
The applicant is proposing to construct a 5,191.95 m2 (55,885.68 ft2), four-storey office
building with an accessory automobile sales establishment and associated service and 
repair uses (see Appendix “B” – Architectural Plans). 

History
In 2017, Council approved site-specific Official Plan and Zoning By-law Amendments for 
the subject property to facilitate the development of a 5,393.26 m2 (58,030 ft2) five-
storey office building with an accessory automobile sales establishment and associated 
service and repair uses, and a five-storey parking garage. In 2019, the applicant 
received Site Plan Approval (SC 09 116234) for the proposed development (see 
Appendix “C” – 2019 Site Plan Approval).



The Applicant has since constructed the five-storey parking garage however, the plans 
for the corporate head office have been revised to remove the drive-through service 
reception area on the north side of the building and to eliminate the fifth storey offices. 
The applicant is in the process of submitting a revised Site Plan Application (SPC 21 
129279), which will be reviewed by the City and applicable external agencies.

Official Plan and Zoning 
Official Plan 2014 (partially approved on November 24, 2017, and further updated on 
April 9, 2018), as amended by Official Plan Amendment No. 11 (OPA 11)
In 2017, site-specific Official Plan Amendment No. 11 (OPA 11) was adopted by Council
to re-designate the subject property to “Service Employment”, which provides for a 
range of employment uses, including service, office, financial institution, light industrial 
and warehousing, motor vehicle body shop or repair facility, small-scale retail and 
service uses, trade school, commercial school, commercial parking garage, and hotel.
The “Service Employment” designation also provides for motor vehicle retail sales with 
limited accessory outdoor storage or display of motor vehicles as a discretionary use.

Zoning By-Law 177-96 and Amending By-law 2017-62
The subject property is zoned “Business Park*579 (BP*578)” under By-law 177-96, as 
amended. Exception 578 relates to the site-specific Zoning By-law Amendment 2017-
62, which was enacted in 2017 that restricts the permitted uses to the following:

a) Business Offices;

b) Parking Garage;

c) Motor Vehicle Service Station, accessory to a Business Office;

d) Motor Vehicle Repair Garage, accessory to a Business Office;

e) Motor Vehicle Sales Establishment, accessory to a Business Office;

f) Outdoor Display and Sales Area, accessory to a Motor Vehicles Sales 

Establishment; and,

g) Outdoor Storage of Vehicles, accessory to a Parking Garage. 

The Amending By-law also established a number of site-specific development 
standards based on the proposal at the time, including but not limited to, minimum
setbacks, minimum landscaping widths, minimum gross floor area (GFA) of business 
office use, etc. The current revised proposal does not meet the site-specific by-law 
requirements with respect to minimum GFA of Business Office uses. Further details of 
this requirement is provided in the comment section below.

Zoning Preliminary Review (ZPR) Undertaken
The owner has completed a Zoning Preliminary Review (ZPR 21 116717) on May 10, 
2021, to confirm the variances required for the proposed development.

COMMENTS
The Planning Act states that four tests must be met in order for a variance to be granted 
by the Committee of Adjustment:

a) The variance must be minor in nature;



b) The variance must be desirable, in the opinion of the Committee of Adjustment, 
for the appropriate development or use of land, building or structure;

c) The general intent and purpose of the Zoning By-law must be maintained;
d) The general intent and purpose of the Official Plan must be maintained.

Reduction in Minimum Gross Floor Area (GFA) of Business Office Uses
The applicant is requesting relief to permit Business Office uses to occupy a minimum 
of 55.5% (2,881.01 m2 or 31,010.93 ft2) of the GFA, whereas the Amending By-law 
requires Business Office uses to occupy a minimum of 60.0% (3,114.57 m2 or 33,524.95 
ft2) of the GFA of all buildings on site excluding the Parking Garage.

The request for a reduction to the GFA of Business Office uses is attributed to the 
Applicant’s proposal to reduce the height of the building from five storeys to four 
storeys. The removal of the fifth storey business offices has resulted in the need for this 
variance request. The intent of the By-law is to ensure that Business Offices remain the 
primary use on the subject property, and that the Motor Vehicle Service Station, Repair 
Garage, and Sales Establishment remain as accessory uses. Staff note that the 
proposed motor vehicle sales establishment and service/repair area will only occupy 
44.5% (2,309.94 m2 or 24,863.99 ft2) of GFA. Given that the Business Office uses will 
continue to occupy a greater floor area than the accessory uses, Staff are of the opinion 
that the Business Offices would still be considered the primary use of the building. 

Furthermore, the proposed changes to the development meets all other zoning 
provisions that establish the prescribed building envelope. Staff also note that, with the 
exception of the removal of the drive-through service component, the proposed building 
footprint remains consistent with the plans approved as part of the 2019 Site Plan 
Control application. As such, Staff have no objection to the requested variance.

PUBLIC INPUT SUMMARY
No written submissions were received as of August 19, 2021. It is noted that additional 
information may be received after the writing of the report, and the Secretary-Treasurer 
will provide information on this at the meeting. 

CONCLUSION
Planning Staff have reviewed the application with respect to Section 45(1) of the 
Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13, as amended, and are of the opinion that the 
variance request meets the four tests of the Planning Act and have no objection. Staff 
recommend that the Committee consider public input in reaching a decision. 

The onus is ultimately on the applicant to demonstrate why they should be granted relief 
from the requirements of the zoning by-law, and how they satisfy the tests of the 
Planning Act required for the granting of minor variances.

Please see Appendix “D” for conditions to be attached to any approval of this 
application.



PREPARED BY:

___________________________________
Melissa Leung, Planner, Central District

REVIEWED BY:

____________________________________
Sabrina Bordone, Senior Planner, Central District 

APPENDICES
Appendix “A” – Aerial Photo
Appendix “B” – Architectural Plans
Appendix “C” – 2019 Site Plan Approval
Appendix “D” – Conditions 
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APPENDIX “D”
CONDITIONS TO BE ATTACHED TO ANY APPROVAL OF FILE A/098/21

1. The variance applies only to the proposed development as long as it remains;

2. That the variance applies only to the subject development, in substantial conformity 

with the plan(s) attached as ‘Appendix B’ to this Staff Report; or further revised by 

any site plan ‘endorsed’ or ‘approved’ drawings under File No. SPC 21 129279. 

CONDITIONS PREPARED BY:

___________________________________
Melissa Leung, Planner, Central District
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